
Page 1 of 2 John Day City Council Agenda May 27, 2025  

              
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday May 27, 2025 

BUDGET MEETING:  5:30 p.m. (Agenda posted separately) 
REGULAR MEETING: 7:00 pm  

John Day Fire Station 
316 S Canyon Blvd, John Day, OR   97845 
(541)575-0028    www.cityofjohnday.com 

 

This meeting is open to the public. This agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting. However, the agenda does not limit the ability of the Council to consider 
additional subjects. Meetings may be canceled without notice. Zoom Meeting participants should use the 
“raise your hand” feature during these times to alert the moderator that they would like to speak. 

 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

City of John Day is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
https://zoom.us/j/95867942253?pwd=dHE5c3djSEx4OFBuZndPQU5HMGN3QT09 

Meeting ID: 958 6794 2253 
Passcode: 776959 

 
 
Regular Meeting: 
 
Call to Order:  Regular John Day Council Meeting 7:00 pm. 
1. Call John Day City Council Meeting to Order  
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call  
4. Amend or Accept Regular Agenda  
 
5. Public Comments (Please Limit to 3 Minutes) 
Public Comments are an opportunity to present information or speak on an issue that is not on the 

agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes for each person. Visitors may state their comments and 

should not expect the council to engage in back and forth dialogue regarding the comment, council may 

either choose to add it to a follow up meeting or direct City Manager to follow up with the speaker.  

 

6. Consent Agenda 
All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to every member of the City Council 

for reading and study, are considered routine, and will be enacted by one motion of the Council. If 

separate discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the 

Regular Agenda by request.   

 

a. AP through 5-19-25 
b. Minutes of CC Mtg 4-22-25 
c. Minutes of Finance Workshop Mtg 4-22-25 

http://www.cityofjohnday.com/
https://zoom.us/j/95867942253?pwd=dHE5c3djSEx4OFBuZndPQU5HMGN3QT09


Page 2 of 2 John Day City Council Agenda May 27, 2025  

 

 

      
 
 
5-27-25 CC Agenda Cont. 
 
 

  
 

 
7. Ranch and Rodeo Community Grant request for $1500.00 

 
8. Strategic Plan Kick Off – Jensen Strategies Presentation 

 
9. Discussion regarding naming of the John Day Fire Hall 

 
10. City Manager Comments: 

 
11. Mayor and Council Comments 

 
12. Adjournment: Next Regular Meeting: June 10, 2025 

     Proposed City Council Budget Adoption Meeting:  June 24, 2025 
    

 
  

















 

 
CITY OF JOHN DAY 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 22, 2025 
 
 
COUCILORS PRESENT: COUNCILORS ABSENT
Sherrie Rininger, Mayor 
Chris Labhart, Councilor 
Eric Bush, Council President 
Bradley Hale, Councilor 
Ron Phillips, Councilor 
Vern Pifer, Councilor 
Heather Swank, Councilor  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Melissa Bethel, City Manager 
Rob Gaslin, Contract Finance 

 
 
 

John Russel, Auditor 
 
Agenda Item No. 1—Call Meeting to Order 
The City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm. 
 
Agenda Item No. 2—Pledge of Allegiance 
The City Council stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Agenda Item No. 3—Roll Call and Attendance 
All councilors were present. 
 
Agenda Item No. 4—Amend or Accept Regular Agenda  
Councilor Bush moved to accept the agenda as published. The motion was seconded by Councilor 
Swank and passed unanimously.   
 
Agenda Item No. 5—Public Comments 
Jim Spell: Several meetings ago the Fire Chief of Canyon City suggested naming the new Fire Hall in 
honor of Ron Smith, the previous Fire Chief because he put a lot of time and effort into the building. 
Mayor Rininger asked for this to be put on the next council meeting agenda. 
 
Agenda Item No. 6—Consent Agenda  

a. Accounts Payable through 3-27-25 
b. Minutes of 4-8-25 

 
Mayor Rininger had one addition to the minutes of 4-28-2025. On Agenda Item No. 12 she would like to 
clarify that the money they asked for would have been from the Federal Government.  
 
Councilor Phillips made a motion to accept the consent agenda as amended. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Swank and passed unanimously.  
 
Agenda Item No. 7—Audit Report for FY22-23—John Russel; Zwygart John & Associates CPA’s PLLC  



Page 2 of 2 
 

Russel discussed the FY22-23 Audit Report. 
 
During the course of the audit, they were made aware of allegations of significant mismanagement of 
the Urban Renewal Agency. The current governing body is aware of the allegations and has made the 
consultations with attorneys that are necessary. The Urban Renewal Agency is its own independent 
audit. 
 
The City of John Day lacked oversight over federal payroll tax liability reporting. There should be controls 
in place to ensure payroll tax liabilities are properly reported and remitted to federal and state agencies. 
The lack of oversight caused the City to fail to make required payments which led to significant penalties 
and interests charge to the City. The City has hired Gaslin to provide accounting and payroll services, 
policies and procedures will be reviewed to ensure future compliance. 
 
Councilor Labhart made a motion to accept the FY22-23 Audit as presented. The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Bush and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 8—City Manager Comments 
The City of John Day Budget meetings will begin on May 12th, 2025. Bethel encourages Councilors and 
members of the Budget Committee to go to other cities websites and look at their fees. Bethel is putting 
together a master fee schedule because there are things the City isn’t charging for when they should be.   
 
Agenda Item No. 9—Mayor and Council Comments 
The Ways and Means Committee was held in La Grande, Ducote did not have the opportunity to speak 
on the Cities behalf. Mayor Rininger sent a letter out to our Congressmen, Representatives and 
Senators. There were several positive responses to the letter and she was able to testify for the 
Treatment Plant regarding funding as well as submit her testimony in writing.  
 
Mayor Rininger was very pleased with the outcome and attendance of the Small Cities meeting that was 
held on April 18th. 
 
Councilor Labhart met with Senator Widen’s representatives last week and Senator Widen will be in 
town on April 24th. 
 
Adjourn:  
There being no further business before council the meeting was adjourned.  
 
__________ 
Melissa Bethel, CM 



 

 
CITY OF JOHN DAY 

FINANCE WORKSHOP MINUTES APRIL 22, 2025 
 
 
COUCILORS PRESENT: COUNCILORS ABSENT
Sherrie Rininger, Mayor 
Chris Labhart, Councilor 
Eric Bush, Council President 
Bradley Hale, Councilor 
Ron Phillips, Councilor 
Vern Pifer, Councilor 
Heather Swank, Councilor  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Melissa Bethel, City Manager 
Rob Gaslin, Contract Finance 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Item No. 1—Call Meeting to Order 
Mayor Rininger called the Finance Workshop to order on April 22, 2025 
 
Agenda Item No. 2—Finance Workshop 
Gaslin gave a power point presentation to the Councilors regarding how the City Finances work within 
the different funds.  
 
Power Point attached. 
 
Adjourn:  
There being no further business before council the meeting was adjourned.  
 
__________ 
Melissa Bethel, CM 



 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    February 13, 2024 
Ordinance ☐ Resolution ☐ Motion X Information  

Date Prepared:   5-20-25 Dept.:  City Manager’s Office 

SUBJECT:  Ranch and Rodeo Museum request for 
Community Dollars 

Contact Person for this Item:  Melissa Bethel,  
City Manager, bethelm@grantcounty-org.gov 
541 575 0028 ex 4224 

 
SUBJECT: Request by the Ranch and Rodeo Museum for budgeted Community Dollars in the amount of 
$1,500.00 
  
BACKGROUND: The City of John Day receives 3% Transient Tax dollars from short term lodging (hotels and 
STRs) within the City limits.  State law requires 70% of the dollars to be spent on tourism activities; while 30% 
of dollars collected are unrestricted.  In the FY24-25 Budget, the City Council approved a line item called 
Community Promotion in which $10,500 of the 30% anticipated unrestricted funds were allotted for grants to 
community organizations based on requests.    
 
The Museum is asking for the funding to reorder brochures which advertise for the museum and are placed all 
around central and eastern Oregon.  In addition, they are rehabbing the existing painted pictures in the windows 
which are faded.  Both of the asked expenditures fall under the 70% restricted tourism promotion line item 
which the City has not yet expended funds.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  The Community Promotion line item has $3,415.00 remaining.  The Tourism Line item 
has $24,500 budgeted for FY24-25. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Ranch and Rodeo Museum Community Grant Application 
 
Suggested Motion:  I move the City of John Day City Council approve/deny the request from the Ranch and 
Rodeo Museum in the amount of $______.     

mailto:bethelm@grantcounty-org.gov














PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (this " Agreement") is dated May 8, 2025, but made effective for all 
purposes as of the Effective Date (as defined below), and is entered into between City of John Day ("City"), an Oregon 
municipal corporation, whose address is 450 E Main Street, John Day, Oregon 97845, and Jensen Strategies, LLC 
("Consultant"), an Oregon limited liability company, whose address is 1750 S Harbor Way, Suite 350, Portland, Oregon 
97201. 

RECITALS: 

City desires to retain Consultant to conduct certain city council strategic planning services. Consultant will 
perform the Services (as defined below) subject to and in accordance with, and subject to, the terms and conditions 
contained in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the parties' mutual obligations contained in this Agreement, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereto hereby agree as follows: 

1. Consultant Services.

1.1 Services: Standards. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, Consultant 
will perform the following goal setting and strategic planning services for and on behalf of City (collectively, the 
"Services"): (a) those goal setting and strategic planning services described in the attached Schedule 1.1: (b) those goal 
setting and strategic planning services identified in the Proposal (as defined below): (c) all other necessary or 
appropriate services customarily provided by Consultant in connection with its performance of those services 
described in Schedule 1.1 and/or the Proposal; and (d) such other goal setting and strategic planning services 
requested by the council or city manager from time to time. Consultant will (x) consult with and advise City on all 
matters concerning the Services reasonably requested by City, (y) communicate all matters and information 
concerning the Services to City and perform the Services under the general direction of City, and (z) devote such time 
and attention to the performance of the Services as City deems necessary or appropriate. Consultant acknowledges 

and agrees that City may cause or direct other persons or contractors to provide services for and on behalf of City that 
are the same or similar to the Services provided by Consultant under this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, 
the term "city manager" means City's then-appointed city manager or his or her designee; the term "council" means 
City's then-elected or appointed city council. 

1.2 Schedule: Condition Precedent. The Services will be completed expeditiously, in a timely manner, 
and in accordance with the schedule identified in Schedule 1.1 and the Proposal. Notwithstanding anything contained 
in this Agreement to the contrary, City's performance of its obligations under this Agreement is conditioned on 
Consultant's performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including, without limitation, those Consultant 
obligations identified under Section 4.4. Consultant submitted to City that certain City Council Goal Setting and 

Strategic Plan Proposal dated April 17, 2025 attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Proposal"). City has relied on the 
representations, warranties, and covenants contained in the Proposal when City selected Consultant to perform the 
Services. Consultant represents, warrants, and covenants to City that the representations, warranties, and covenants 
contained in the Proposal are true and correct in all respects. 

2. Compensation.

2.1 Compensation. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, in consideration of 
Consultant's timely performance of the Services in accordance with this Agreement, City will pay Consultant the rates 
and/or fees identified in the Proposal. Consultant will submit monthly invoices to City concerning the Services 
performed by Consultant during the immediately preceding month (each an "Invoice"). Each Invoice will contain the 

1 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

{2301425114-01800690;1} - Revised MB



following information: (a) a summary of the Services performed by Consultant (and by whom); (b) the number of hours 
(or fraction thereof) each person spent to perform the Services; (c) the applicable fee(s) for performing the Services; 
and (d) all other information reasonably requested by City. City will pay the amount due under each Invoice within 
thirty (30) days after City has reviewed and approved the Invoice. No compensation will be paid by City for any portion 
of the Services not performed. City's payment will be accepted by Consultant as full compensation for performing the 
Services. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, total compensation payable by City 
under this Agreement for the performance of the Services will not exceed $40,000.00. 

2.2 No Benefits: No Reimbursement. City will not provide any benefits to Consultant, and Consultant 
will be solely responsible for obtaining Consultant's own benefits, including, without limitation, insurance, medical 
reimbursement, and retirement plans. Consultant will provide, at Consultant's cost and expense, all materials, 
equipment, and supplies necessary or appropriate to perform the Services. City will not reimburse Consultant for 
any expenses Consultant incurs to perform the Services. 

3. Relationship.

3.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor of City. Consultant is not an 
employee of City. Consultant will be free from direction and control over the means and manner of performing the 
Services, subject only to the right of City to specify the desired results. This Agreement does not create an agency 
relationship between City and Consultant and does not establish a joint venture or partnership between City and 
Consultant. Consultant does not have the authority to bind City or represent to any person that Consultant is an 
agent of City. Consultant has the authority to hire other persons to assist Consultant in performing the Services 
(and has the authority to fire such persons). 

3.2 Taxes: Licenses. City will not withhold any taxes from any payments made to Consultant, and 
Consultant will be solely responsible for paying all taxes arising out of or resulting from Consultant's performance of 
the Services, including, without limitation, income, social security, workers' compensation, and employment 
insurance taxes. Consultant will be solely responsible for obtaining all licenses, approvals, and certificates 
necessary or appropriate to perform th·e Services. 

4. Representations: Warranties: Covenants.

In addition to any other Consultant representation, warranty, and/or covenant made in this Agreement, 
Consultant represents, warrants, and covenants to County as follows: 

4.1 Authority: Binding Obligation: Conflicts. Consultant is validly existing and in good standing under 
applicable Oregon law. Consultant has full power and authority to sign and deliver this Agreement and to perform 
all Consultant's obligations under this Agreement. This Agreement is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of 
Consultant, enforceable against Consultant in accordance with its terms. The signing and delivery of this 
Agreement by Consultant and the performance by Consultant of all Consultant's obligations under this Agreement 
will not (a) breach any agreement to which Consultant is a party, and/or give any person the right to accelerate any 
obligation of Consultant, (b) violate any law, judgment, and/or order to which Consultant is subject, and/or (c) 
require the consent, authorization, and/or approval of any person, including, without limitation, any governmental 
body. 

4.2 Quality of Services. Consultant will perform the Services diligently, in good faith and in a 
professional manner, free from errors or omissions, to the best of Consultant's ability, and in accordance with this 
Agreement. The Services will be performed in accordance with the Laws (as defined below). Consultant will be 
solely responsible for the Services. Consultant will make all decisions called for promptly and without 
unreasonable delay. All materials and documents prepared by Consultant will be accurate, complete, 
unambiguous, prepared properly, and in compliance with the Laws. 

2 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

{2301425114-01800690;1} 









the addresses set forth above, or any other address that a party may designate by notice to the other party, and 

are considered delivered upon actual receipt if delivered personally, by fax or email transmission (with electronic 

con City ation of delivery), or by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, or at the end of the third 

business day after the date of deposit if deposited in the United States mail, postage pre-paid, certified, return 

receipt requested. 

6.5 Waiver; Entire Agreement. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, waived, or 

discharged unless such waiver, modification, or discharge is agreed to in writing by City and Consultant. No waiver 

of either party at any time of the breach of, or lack of compliance with, any conditions or provisions of this 

Agreement will be deemed a waiver of other provisions or conditions hereof. This Agreement contains the entire 

agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and 

contains all the terms and conditions of the parties' agreement and supersedes any other oral or written 

negotiations, discussions, representations, or agreements. Consultant has not relied on any promises, statements, 

representations, or warranties except as set forth expressly in this Agreement. 

6.6 Person; Interpretation; Execution. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "person" means any 

natural person, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, City, association, trust, 

unincorporated organization, government or governmental county or political subdivision, or any other entity. All 

pronouns contained herein and any variations thereof will be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, or 

neutral, singular or plural, as the identity of the parties may require. The singular includes the plural and the plural 

includes the singular. The word "or" is not exclusive. The words "include," "includes," and "including" are not 

limiting. The titles, captions, or headings of the sections herein are inserted for convenience of reference only and 

are not intended to be a part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The parties may 

execute this Agreement in separate counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered will be an original, 

but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. For purposes of this Agreement, the term 

"Effective Date" means the date upon which this Agreement is fully executed by the parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be binding and effective for all 

purposes as of the Effective Date. 

City: 

City of John Day, 

an Oregon municipal corporation 

By: Melissa Bethel, City Manager 

Dated: May 10,  2025 

Federal Tax Id. No.: 93-600219 2 

6 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

{2301425 l 14·01800690;1} - Revised MB

Consultant: 

Jensen Strategies, LLC 

an Oregon limited liability company 

Federal Tax Id. No.:_4�6=2=0=20=6=3�7 ____ _ 





April 17, 2025 

Melissa Bethel 
City Manager 
City of John Day 
450 E Main St 
John Day, OR 97845 

Re: City of John Day City Council 5 Year Strategic Planning Facilitation 

Dear Ms. Bethel: 

It is our pleasure to submit a proposal to provide the City of John Day with City Council Strategic 
Planning services. 

We bring unique skills and experience in City Council strategic planning, goal setting, coaching 
on effective Councils and City teams, and community engagement notably: 

• Facilitation of numerous City Council goal setting and team building retreats for Oregon
communities.

• Our team brings over 30 years’ of experience facilitating public meetings, special task
forces, strategic planning committees, boards, commissions, and elected bodies.

• We also work closely with former public administrators who are exclusively contracted
with our firm and have direct experience in the field and understand the benefits of goal
setting and long-term strategic planning for local government.

• We have a track record designing and conducting planning processes that include a
framework for sustained, accountable, and tangible implementation.

• Erik Jensen is a regular instructor for the League of Oregon Cities (LOC) and a periodic
conference presenter on effective City Councils, Council and staff roles and
responsibilities, strategic planning, and community visioning.

• We are familiar with rural communities. We regularly work with cities between 1,000 -
2,500 in population and are well versed in the unique opportunities and challenges that
presents.

• We work with our clients to conduct strategic planning efforts that are organized,
inclusive, and rooted in city management best practices.



1 

• Our team takes pride in working closely with City staff throughout the project to create
a product that meets City needs while being responsive to available City resources and
capacity.

In short, our team offers a comprehensive set of skills and experience for this important City 
Council strategic planning. The facilitator for this work is anticipated to be Amelia Wallace, 
Senior Associate with Jensen Strategies with support from other Jensen Strategies’ senior and 
support team members. 

Our proposal terms are effective for 90 days. We are an Oregon-certified Emerging Small 
Business (ESB), #9880. 

Please feel free to contact me or Amelia Wallace with any questions or requests for additional 
information. 

Best, 

Erik Jensen 
Principal 
Jensen Strategies, LLC 
1750 S. Harbor Way, Suite 350 
Portland, OR 97201 
(503) 477-8312
erik@jensenstrategies.com



2 

2025 CITY COUNCIL RETREAT 
ATTACHMENT A 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

Desired outcome: Provide a process to establish planning tools to support the City Council’s 
ability to serve as responsible stewards of the City and be responsive to community requests. 
This outcome will be accomplished via an inclusive, multi-faceted community input process 
with in-person and virtual tools, one facilitated session in person with City Council, virtual 
engagement with City staff, and two virtual project presentations to City Council.  

To inform Council’s future policymaking, a community engagement tool and process will be 
developed and implemented that is responsive to Council’s desired input. A full-day retreat 
with City Council will establish goals and policy direction for the City. Subsequently, City staff 
will be engaged to support the development of a 5-year operational strategic plan that reflects 
Council goals.  

It is understood that no current long-range goals exist to form a preliminary basis and that the 
consultant will facilitate and assist in developing a complete draft set of goals based on Council 
input.   

Objectives: 
• Perform an environmental scan to establish shared strategic planning desired outcomes,

needs for a successful retreat, and preliminary suggestions for priorities and objectives.

• Conduct a community engagement process to seek input on community needs and
priorities. Summarize key input themes in a report and presentation to Council

• Provide a Council driven update of the Council Goals that is inclusive of community,
staff, and stakeholder input.

• Work closely and collaboratively with staff to develop a 5-year operational strategic plan
aligned with final Council goals, priorities, and available city resources.



3 

PROJECT APPROACH AND SCOPE 

Jensen Strategies’ experience and approach to conducting City Council strategic planning is 
based on providing a discussion environment where participants have the information they 
need to make informed decisions, maximize everyone’s time through advance planning and a 
facilitation strategy, keeping discussions within the parameters of the subject matter and 
group’s purview (e.g., policy level), striving for consensus, and accurate follow-up 
documentation.  

The following tasks delineate our proposed scope: 

Task 1: Project Start-up and Overview Presentation 

To begin the project, the consultant will meet with the City Manager (and other key staff if 
desired) by Zoom to refine the scope of work and timeline, discuss expectations, and obtain any 
necessary background information for review. This meeting will also include a discussion of the 
list of people to interview and preliminary meeting logistics. If needed, the consultant will 
provide the client with an amended scope of work and timeline. Once a preliminary process 
and schedule has been established, the consultant will provide a virtual presentation of the 
process to City Council for feedback and final adjustments to the process to meet Council 
objectives.  

Deliverables: Zoom meeting to review and refine the scope and timeline of the project, 
review of relevant materials, list of interviewees, final scope of work, and timeline. One 
virtual presentation to City Council to overview planned process. 

Task 2: Community Engagement Meeting and Satisfaction Survey 

Based on direction from the Council, the consultant will prepare a multi-faceted community 
engagement tool and engagement strategy to solicit meaningful input on City matters. A final 
strategy will be confirmed with the City Manager responsive to preliminary consultant 
observations and findings but is anticipated to include at a minimum, 1-2 in person facilitated 
meetings, a survey (online or written), and partnership with local organizations to promote. The 
engagement is assumed to be focused on community satisfaction using a focused list of topic 
areas.  

In person sessions (up to 6 hours) will be held in City facilities or local community spaces in 
coordination with City staff. The consultant will provide survey collection tool (online and 
written versions), a graphic, and recommendations to effectively promote participation in the 
survey. Posting and advertisement of the survey will be the responsibility of the City unless 
otherwise negotiated. Results received will be qualitatively summarized by the consultant and 
not intended to create a scientific result. A more comprehensive or representative survey may 
be negotiated for an additional expense and may include recommended engagement of 
specialized consultant partners.  



4 

Deliverables: Development of online community survey; preparation of promotional 
materials to be distributed by the City; summarization of key feedback themes; delivery 
of a final report or presentation to City Council virtually (in person negotiable for 
additional travel expense). 

Task 3: City Council, City Staff, and Stakeholder Zoom Interviews 

In preparation for the strategic planning retreat, the consultant will conduct individual 
interviews with the 2025 City Council members, City Manager, designated upper-level staff, and 
other organizational partners/stakeholders.  The interviews will solicit interviewees’ 
perspectives appropriate to their roles on current City issues, long-term and short-term City 
goals, and Council policy development opportunities and challenges. City Council will also be 
asked about community engagement, retreat expectations, and other information needed for a 
productive discussion. City Staff interviews will solicit key operational information to inform the  
preliminary preparation of strategic plan materials. A survey or other group input tool will be 
prepared for external stakeholders.  

All interviews will be conducted by Zoom and will be confidential.  No written or verbal reports 
or other communications will attribute statements/findings to any one individual.  The 
consultant will be responsible for scheduling the interviews.   

Deliverables: Up to 12 confidential Zoom interviews with the Mayor, City Councilors, City 
Manager, City staff. Designated stakeholder engagement via additional interviews or 
group session. Virtual meeting with City Manager to discuss format and agenda. 

Task 4: Council Retreat Work Products and Agenda Development 

The consultant will analyze and produce an input summary gathered from the interviews and 
reviewed information. The consultant will meet with the City Manager, and/or designee(s) by 
Zoom to discuss a recommended approach and finalize the format and agenda for the retreat 
based on the input from the interviews and the expectations of Council and staff.  

Deliverables: City Council retreat agenda and materials. 

Task 5: City Council Retreat 

The consultant will facilitate a one-day City Council retreat (up to six hours, excluding a 30 
minute lunch break) in person. 

Topics for the retreat may include, but are not limited to: 

• Staff led progress report on City major projects/initiatives
• Community engagement feedback presentation



5 

• Orientation for City Council on goal setting and strategic planning best practices
• Development and finalization of Council goals
• Other topics of interest to the Council/City Manager

During the retreat, the consultant will utilize various tools to aid in the discussion including 
handouts, PowerPoint presentation, flip charts, and small group discussions (if appropriate). 
Printed materials will be prepared and provided by the consultant unless otherwise requested. 

Deliverables: Facilitation of a one-day Council retreat (up to six hours) in person. 
Consultant will provide meeting materials in coordination with the City Manager and/or 
designated City staff. 

Task 6: Staff Strategic/Work Planning Session 

To integrate finalized Council goals into City operations, the consultant will engage with staff to 
develop a 5-year strategic work plan. The final approach for this work will be determined in 
coordination with the City Manager anticipated to be provided either as a facilitated group 
session or other direct engagement with key staff. The strategic plan is anticipated to include 
development or documentation and prioritization of specific actions to support implementation 
of Council goals, responsive to available City resources. A final format for this product will be 
determined in coordination with the City Manager and in alignment with the goal setting 
product. 

Deliverables: Facilitation of a half-day Staff retreat (up to four hours) or other staff 
engagement. Consultant will provide meeting materials (including coordination of food 
or beverage) in coordination the City Manager and/or designated City staff. 

Task 7: Preparation of Final Products 

The consultant will prepare final versions of all products developed during the retreat, strategic 
planning session, and community engagement results in agreed upon formats.  

Deliverables: A written summary of all agreed upon products provided in a PDF format. 



6 

PROJECT BUDGET 

The total budget for this work including professional fees and direct expenses is proposed not 
to exceed $33,840.  

This assumes two in person trips for two team members including mileage, travel time billed at 
half the team member’s rate, lodging at $200/night/person, per diem $60/day/person, retreat 
materials, food and/or beverage up to $300, and printing. Jensen Strategies will submit invoices 
to the city on a monthly basis for services rendered, with payment due within 30 days. An 
additional trip and engagement session(s) may be added to the scope if desired for an extra 
$3,100 in travel costs per trip plus time and materials to cover the preparation and conduction 
of the additional engagement activities. 

Hourly Rates: 
Erik Jensen  Principal  $ 225 
Amelia Wallace  Senior Associate  $ 160 
Ashley Graff  Associate $ 100 
Emily Rehder   Operations Manager $ 85 
Savannah Cline   Project Associate $ 75 

Sia Lindstom Senior Consultant $175 
Dave Waffle Senior Consultant $175 

Professional Liability Insurance 

Jensen Strategies carries a professional liability insurance policy through The Hanover Insurance 
Group in the amount of $2 million.  



7 

PRELIMINARY PROJECT SCHEDULE

A final schedule for all activities will be confirmed with the City Manager. 

Council Retreat Development 
A preliminary proposed schedule is outlined below. 

Week of Actions 

Week 1 Start-up Meeting 

Weeks 2-3 Schedule and conduct City Council and Staff Interviews 

Week 4 Interview summary and agenda development 

Week 5 Zoom meeting with City Manager re: interview results and draft 
agenda 

Week 6 Final materials preparation 

Week 7 Retreat facilitation 

TBD Retreat summarization/follow up 
Final product delivered to City Manager 

Community Engagement and Survey 
The planning and input collection for the community survey is anticipated to occur over an 
approximately two-month period.  

Staff Strategic Work Plan Session 
The approach and scheduling for this session will be coordinated and finalized with the City 
Manager.  



8  

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 
 

City Council Goal Setting and Team Building  
Jensen Strategies has facilitated comprehensive goal setting and team building retreats for 
numerous local government elected boards in Oregon in recent years, including the cities of 
Albany, Carlton, Dayton Corvallis, Dallas, Hood River, McMinnville, St. Helens, Tigard, West Linn, 
Wilsonville, Woodburn, and Clatsop County. In each process, preliminary interviews were 
conducted with all participants (Mayor, Councilors, Commissioners, and executive staff) to 
identify issues for discussion and clarify expectations for the retreat. Each retreat featured a 
streamlined, facilitated process that incorporated productive and forward-looking discussion, 
resulting in tangible goals and/or outcomes for each City Council and/or Commission. Final 
written reports, summaries, and/or other products were provided to each jurisdiction 
summarizing the meeting and outcomes.  
 
City of Umatilla Rock the Locks Community Engagement 
Since January of 2024 Amelia Wallace has served as project manager for the City of Umatilla 
community engagement initiative to support the communication, operational refinement, and 
policy decision making related to a new major City led event known as Rock the Locks. The 3-
day music festival, intended to promote economic development and community activity, has 
required careful community engagement to identify appropriate mitigations for negative sound 
impacts on nearby neighbors, facilitate an inclusive community process to determine the future 
of the festival, and promote effective communication and trust between the City and 
community. This engagement has been prepared and conducted in coordination with City staff 
in alignment with engagement best practices and through utilization of a variety of engagement 
tools. These approaches include but are not limited to facilitation of a single or a series of 
meetings or town halls, informational sessions, targeted and open online surveys, and direct 
communication with engaged neighbors. 
 
LOC Community Visioning and Strategic Planning Class 
Erik Jensen currently serves as a contract instructor for the League of Oregon Cities’ (LOC) 
training program where he teaches a one-day courses on effective city teams, community 
visioning, and strategic planning. The effective city teams course covers the roles and 
responsibilities of elected officials and staff, the 10 habits of effective city councils, and best 
practices for Council/staff coordination and collaboration.  The community visioning and 
strategic planning course covers the benefits, development processes, inter-relationships, and 
implementation structures for these two long-term multi-disciplinary planning tools. 
 
Tualatin Soil & Water Conservation District Strategic Plan 
Jensen Strategies is presently working with the Tualatin Soil and Water Conservation District 
(TSWCD) to develop a five-year strategic plan.  The project includes facilitating a strategic 
planning committee comprised of TSWCD Board members and managers to develop 
organizational goals, an action plan, and an implementation process.   The process has been 
informed by 24 stakeholder interviews with Board members, organizational management, and 



9 

organizational partners as well.  In addition, four all-staff online surveys were conducted at key 
intervals in the plan’s development. 

Medford 2040 
Jensen Strategies was the primary consultant facilitating a comprehensive community visioning 
process to develop a preferred 30-year vision and action plan for Medford, Oregon. The process 
included a City Council appointed citizen Task Force charged with recommending a preferred 
30-year vision and an action plan to implement it. A parallel, but integrated, multi-faceted
public input process informed the Task Force’s work to develop the projects. Jensen Strategies
was managing the project including facilitating the Task Force and working in collaboration with
public involvement and community development subconsultants. The outcome of this project
was a community vision and action plan that is based on community input with a tangible
framework and actions to implement it.

Additional information about the firm’s other relevant experience is available upon request. 



10 

REFERENCES 

Jensen Strategies has the honor of being recommended by:

Shannon Beaucaire, City Manager 
City of Carlton 
945 W. Grant Street 
Carlton, OR 97111 
503-852-7575
sbeaucaire@ci.carlton.or.us

David Stockdale, City Manager 
City of Umatilla 
P.O. Box 130 
Umatilla, OR 97882 
509-303-1051
david.stockdale@umatilla.gov

Annette Frank, Mayor 
City of Dayton 
416 Ferry Street 
Dayton, OR 97114 
971-275-4470
annettefrank@dayton.gov

mailto:sbeaucaire@ci.carlton.or.us
mailto:david.stockdale@umatilla.gov
mailto:annettefrank@dayton.gov


11 

TEAM PROFILES 
Jen 

Erik Jensen, Principal 
Erik Jensen is the Principal and Founder of Jensen Strategies, LLC. 
He established the firm in 2012 after serving over 20 years as a 
public administrator, project manager, and public affairs consultant 
in Oregon and Washington. Erik has led numerous processes helping 
Northwest organizations navigate future policy and operational 
planning as well as recruiting upper-level public managers. 

Erik has assisted local governments and public policy organizations 
to set strategic courses of action for current and future decision-
making.  As a seasoned facilitator, strategic planner, recruiter, and 
organizational and public policy development expert, he has led 
significant initiatives for numerous entities including cities, counties, 
and professional organizations.  These projects have included 
upper-level recruitments, city council retreats, strategic planning processes, community vision 
action planning, organizational assessments, committee facilitation, and public policy feasibility 
studies. 

As an experienced facilitator and trained mediator, Erik has helped clients build partnerships 
and reach consensus among diverse interests. Erik believes the best policy and organizational 
development initiatives are objective, inclusive, well informed, and lead to tangible 
outcomes.  He emphasizes the importance of balancing community and organizational 
interests, involving key stakeholders, and ensuring the process is well informed to build 
sustainable results. 

Before forming Jensen Strategies, Erik was the Administration Department Director for the City 
of Hillsboro overseeing several organization-wide functions including city-wide projects (e.g., 
visioning, strategic planning, sustainability), legislative relations, community and media 
relations, and franchise management. Earlier, as a senior project manager for the same 
department, he led external and internal policy initiatives such as development and 
implementation of the international award-winning Hillsboro 2020 Vision. He led the process to 
develop the City’s first operational strategic plan.  Prior to the City of Hillsboro, Erik was a public 
affairs consultant with another firm where he facilitated public engagement processes for large, 
high-profile projects such as Portland CSO Program, and Oregon Arena Project (now Moda 
Center).  He has also held staff positions at the Oregon Legislature and political campaigns. 

Erik has a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science from Lewis and Clark College and a Master 
of Public Administration degree from the University of Washington.  He is a member of the 
International City/County Management Association (ICMA) and the Oregon City/County 
Management Association (OCCMA).  Erik currently serves on the Alumni Board of Lewis and 
Clark College. 



12 

Amelia Wallace, Senior Associate 

Amelia Wallace, Senior Associate, has been with Jensen 
Strategies since 2020 providing project leadership, recruitment 
support, facilitation, policy analysis, and product development for 
clients. She earned her Master of Public Administration (MPA) 
from the University of Washington Evans School of Public Policy 
& Governance in Seattle with a concentration on public financial 
management, local government service, and policy analysis. 

As an experienced project manager, facilitator, and researcher, 
she has led or served as project assistant on a variety of projects 
for cities, ports, nonprofits, and other professional 
organizations. These projects have included upper-level 
recruitment, city council retreats and goal setting, strategic 
planning processes, community visioning, work group facilitation, and public policy feasibility 
studies. 

Amelia is from the Tennessee Valley and earned her Bachelor’s in Politics with Honors from 
Oberlin College in Ohio. She started her career with three cycles of campaign organizing for 
local and statewide elections. While happily retired from campaigns, her experience organizing 
and training maintains her passion for civic engagement and community development. She also 
served as an AmeriCorps member building partnerships and running youth biking safety and 
Safe Routes to School programs.  

While in Seattle, Amelia immersed herself in a variety of professional and academic activities. In 
her work, she served as the graduate intern for the City of Seattle Department of 
Transportation Curbside Management team providing parking policy research, supporting 
COVID-19 business relief efforts, and coordinating neighborhood engagement and 
communication about new Link light rail stations. In her final consulting project for her degree, 
she worked with the Seattle Office of Civil Rights to develop qualitative analysis data as part of 
the City’s Race and Social Justice Initiative. Outside of class, she led the local University of 
Washington International City/County Management Association (ICMA) student chapter which 
offers an assortment of professional development events and networking opportunities 
including conferences and paid fellowship opportunities to support students’ work with small 
cities across Washington state. 



13  

 
 
Emily Rehder, Operations Manager 
		
Emily Rehder is the Operations Manager joining the team in the 
spring of 2021. She manages office operations, directs project 
support, coordinates marketing efforts, leads graphic design work, 
and oversees the firm’s online presence including the website and 
social media.  
 
Emily is responsible for candidate management during our 
recruitment process. Her attention to detail and understanding of 
timeliness to the customer and candidates is remarkable. She works 
with our associates in following through with scheduling interviews, 
arranging candidate travel, managing candidate application packets, 
and assembly of candidate information to give to the client.  
 
Emily’s experience as a manager stems from running a successful supplemental education 
center for 11 years. Emily holds a Bachelor’s degree in American Studies with an emphasis on 
Minorities in Education from UC Berkeley.  
 
Originating from Garden Grove, CA, Emily moved to Oregon over a decade ago and enjoys the 
seasons and the beauty that the Pacific Northwest offers. She enjoys spending time with her 
family and dog, Lucy, traveling, reading, hiking, swimming, and wine tasting at all the amazing 
Oregon wineries.  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 

Sia Lindstrom, Consultant 

Sia Lindstrom is a collaborative leader with over two 
decades of local government and nonprofit 
management experience.  Sia has deep experience in 
strategic planning, facilitation, policy development, 
partnership development, program management and 
evaluation, organizational change, budgeting/fiscal 
management, and human resources. 

Sia was deputy county administrator with Washington 
County (Oregon) for thirteen years and is currently 
serving in an interim executive leadership role with City 
of Beaverton.  She received the Donald W. Mason 
Distinguished Service Award for leadership in public 
service in June 2021.  She previously held executive 
director positions with two nonprofit social service organizations in the Portland metropolitan 
area and served as chair of several nonprofit boards of directors.  She is a seasoned leader in 
both local government and nonprofit administration and governance. 

Sia is a strong strategic planner and facilitator with deep roots in public administration and the 
council-manager form of government.  Her particular strength is her collaborative leadership 
style, where she is known for her calm approach, positive attitude, open communication style, 
strong project management skills, effective dispute resolution and problem-solving skills, and 
commitment to centering equity, diversity, and inclusion. 

Sia has a bachelor's degree in Anthropology from the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign 
and a master's degree in Public Health from the University of Michigan. 

Sia lives with her partner Bob in Hillsboro, Oregon.  She is an avid road cyclist, a sometimes 
triathlete, and an amateur cellist.  She enjoys anything outdoors in this amazing Pacific 
Northwest that she feels fortunate to call her home. 



15 

Dave Waffle, Consultant 

Dave Waffle is a retired City Manager with more than 45 years of 
municipal management experience. His most recent positions 
include Interim Assistant City Manager and Assistant Finance 
Director for the City of Beaverton, Oregon. Prior to joining 
Beaverton, Dave served as city manager for six Oregon and 
Wisconsin cities. In retirement, he serves as a volunteer Senior 
Advisor to the Oregon City/County Management Association 
(OCCMA), providing support for local government managers and 
administrators.  

He is known for his collaborative approach to intergovernmental 
relations, community development activities, community 
engagement best-practices, government ethics and public finance 

knowledge. He led many regional committees (e.g., solid waste, libraries & broadband services), 
several statewide advisory committees (e.g., finance, small cell telecommunications) and local 
government professional organizations in Wisconsin and Oregon. He now serves Cornelius as 
the chair of their Planning Commission. He holds a master’s degree in Public Affairs from the 
University of Oregon and a bachelor’s degree from Michigan State University. He is a Life 
Member of ICMA and OCCMA. 


	May 27, 2025 CC AGENDA
	AP through 5-19-25 combined
	AP through 5-6-25
	AP through 5-13-25
	AP through 5-19-25

	25 0422 Council Meeting Minutes
	25 0422 Finance Workshop Minutes
	staff report Ranch & Rodeo Museum
	Ranch and Rodeo Museum Application



